
United Nation• 

fi~~NEit\L 
ASSEIIBLY 
SIXTH SESSION 

Official Record& 

AD HOC POLI'I'ItAL ~OMIIIT'l'EE 24th 
MEETING 

Monday, 17 December 1951, at 10.80 a.m. 

Palais de Chaillot, Paris 

CONTENTS 
Page 

Tribute lo tlw memory of Lord Perth. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 125 

Appointment of an imparlial international commission under United Nations 
supervision to carry out a simultaneous invesligation in the Federal 
Hepublic of Germany, in Berlin, and in the Soviet Zone of Germany in 
order to determine whether existing conditions then: make it possible 
lo hold gpnuinely free elections throughout these areas (A/1938, 
A/AC.53JL.1l, A/AC.53JL.l3, A/AC.53fL.l3/Add.l, AfAC.53JL.14, 
:\fAC.53iL.15, A/AC.53fL.15/A.dd.1, A/AC.53/L.17, A/AC.531L.18) 
(continued) ............................................... · .... , 12!) 

Chairman : Mr. Selim SAHPER (Turkey>. 

Tribute to the memory of Lord Perth 

1. Mr. KYROU (Greece) drew attention to the 
announcement in the press of the death of Lord Perth 
who, as Sir Eric Drummond, had been the first Secretary­
General of the League of Nations. He paid a tribute to 
Lord Perth as an advocate of international under­
standing and said that, had he continued as Secretary­
General of the League of Nations, the world might 
perhaps have been able to avoid the tragedy of a 
second world war. 

2. The CHAIRMAN, personally and in the name of 
the Ad Hoc Political Committee, associated himself 
with the Greek representative's tribute to Lord Perth. 

Appointment of an impartial international commission 
under United Nations supervision to carry out a 
simultaneous investigation in the Federal Republic 
of Germany, in Berlin, and in the Soviet Zone of 
Germany in order to determine whether existing 
conditions there make it possible to hold genuinely 
free elections throughout these areas (A/1938, 
AfAC.53fL.ll, A/AC.53fL.l3, AfAC.53fL.l3fAdd.l, 
A/AC.53fL.l4, A/AC.53jL.I5, AjAC.53JL.l5jAdd.l, 
A/ A C.53fL.l7, A/ A C.53JL.l8) (continued). 

{Item 65]* 

3. Mr. FISCHER (Israel) said that the great majority 
of delegations appeared to approach the discussion 
only from the point of view of the differences which 
separated the Western democracies from the countries 
under communist rule. The result was that repre­
sentatives yielded to the temptation to reduce the 
problem of the two Germanies to the single problem 

* Indicates the item number on the General Assembly agenda, 

of the clash between radically opposed ideologies, which 
had caused the world to live in an atmosphere of 
tension and conflict. The Israel delegation did not 
believe that il was possible, in considering the problem 
before the Committee, to exclude the basic fact of the 
historical record of the German people. In tht· 
background of the problem of the two Germanies, there 
was a specifically German problem and he did not 
believe that the effects of a few years of occupation 
were such as to enable the Committee to rule that basic 
factor out. On the contrary, it was only by taking it 
fully into account that the Committee would be able 
to judge the local regimes established under the occu­
pation and clearly envisage a solution of the German 
question. 

4. The purely German aspect of the problem obliged 
the Committee to take particularly into account three 
disastrous currents in German history, which had made 
themselves felt for nearly one hundred years-mili­
tarism, imperialism and nazism. The Israel delegation, 
did not suggest that those phenomena were the 
expression of permanent and unchanging character­
istics of the German people or wish to pass final or 
indiscriminating judgement ; it was none the less true 
that the misuse of power and of democracy had taken 
root in Germany and had made that nation a destruc­
tive force of international peace and human freedom. 
The nations whose sons had generously shed their blood 
to combat militarism, imperialism and nazism would 
be committing the gravest of errors if they allowed 
themselves to forget their sacred duty to ensure that 
such monstrous aberrations were banished for ever. A 
rapprochement between the two great blocs into which 
the world was divided was the prerequisite of a political 
rapprochement between the two Germanies. In that 

125 
A/AC.53/SR.24 



connexiou he reminded the Committee of the vene­
trating analysis made by the representative of Burma 
at the 23rd meeting. 

5. A number of factual conclusions could be drawn 
from the discussion. In the first place, it wonld appear 
that denazification, in the strict sense of the word, had 
bren carried into effect more radically and with greatrr 
vigfJtu· in the eastern Zone than in the western Zont>. 
That fact plainly in no way affected the misgivings that 
representatives might fed regarding Lhe real eflicacy 
of reforms which were not the outcome of a freely 
adopted system of re-education, since, while the 
representatives of the eastern Zone had been commen­
dably firm in condemning the nazi regime and its 
crimes, they had nevertheless shown a certain tendency 
to regard themselves as being entirely free from respon­
sibility for the German past. 

6. Mr. Fischer had already had occasion to stress the 
necessity for that sense of historical responsibility, 
without which real rehabilitation was inconceivable 
and which implied, for the German people, an obligation 
to repair to the fullest possible extent the damage done 
in its name by the previous regime. That sense did not 
seem to exist in East Germany. On the other hand, 
in official circles in 'Vest Germany there was a certain 
tendency to assume responsibility for the past. If that 
tendency was expressed in acts of collective compen­
sation, it would be a step the importance of which 
should not be underrated. A substantial effort had 
already been made in the limited field of individual 
restitution and compensation, which contrasterl with 
the attitude adopted in that respect by East Germany. 
It should be pointed out, however, that West Germany 
showed too great a tendency to forget the horrors of 
the Hitler regime and to show reprehensible leniency 
towards former nazis and war criminals. 

7. In both Germanies there was a danger of remilC 
tarization, in one form or another, whether as armed 
forces camouflaged as police or as units of various sizes 
incorporated in other armies. 'Vhatever precautions 
were taken, nothing would prevent the formation of a 
secret general staff ·which would seek, as soon as a 
favourable opportunity arose, to assemble the dispersed 
forces and assume their effective command, set up a 
tyrannous regime and once more sow the seeds of 
misery and death. 

8. As the Colombian representative had said at the 
21st meeting, it would be absurd to believe that the 
United States, France or the United Kingdom were 
planning aggression, since those countries had twice 
been leaders in the struggle against aggressive mili­
tarism, personified by Wilhelm II and Hitler. It was 
not therefore fear of the Germans being associated in 
aggression that concerned the Israel delegation when 
Germans were invited to meetings to set up a defensive 
system. It was concerned at the presence of the wolf 
among the shepherds. Its concern was similar to that 
expressed by the representatives of Haiti, Colombia 
and Greece who thought that the specifically German 
aspects of the problem should be taken into account 
whereas the commission of investigation proposerl in 

the draft resolution submitted by France, the United 
Kingdom and the United States (A/AC.53/L.ll), was 
to be appointed solely to consider electoral. conditions. 
The discussion had in any case shown that It would he 
useless to send such a commission of investigation to 
Germany. No serious attempt had been made to prove 
that conditions in East Germany were such as to 
permit the holding of free elections. On the othN hand, 
sHch conditions undoubtedly existed in \Vest Germany. 
In the eircumstanees, it might be asked what thet·e W;ts 

to be investigated. The Swedish draft resolution 
(A/AC.53/L.15 and AjAC.53/L.15/Add.l) seemed to 
be more realistic. Nevertheless, in laying down the 
conditions which must be met before elections were 
organized, it omitted one condition which the Isr~el 
delegation considered essential and that was effective 
guarantees against the return of nazism. It could not 
be argued that that grave omission was justified hy 
facts proving that the condition was already mel. 

9. The two draft resolutions before the Committee 
appeared to be equally inappropriate as a mean~ of 
facilitating a solution of the German problem, smce 
neither took into account the specifically German 
aspect of the question. If German unification and 
sovereignty were to be achieved on peaceful lines, the 
world must lay down basic conditions. It must make 
sure that the Germans would not once again set up hy 
democratic methods an authority which would use its 
power only to destroy the democratic institutions from 
which it sprang. Both Germanies must agree or be led 
to agree collectively to assume Germany's his~orical 
responsibility and to ensure the final uprootmg of 
nazism, imperialism and militarism. Only then would 
the free nations be able to encourage Germany to 
choose, by free elections, the leaders of a truly regen­
erated new Germany. 

10. Mr. TRUCCO (Chile) wished first of all to deal 
with the allegations that the inclusion of the question 
of German elections in the agenda was illegal and that 
the appointment of the proposed commission of investi­
gation would be a viol~ti~n of the Ch~r~er. a~d .an 
interference in matters withm the domestic JUriSdiCtiOn 
of a State. The most ingenious communist dialectics 
could not extract any further meaning from Article 107 
of the Charter, because it expressly stated that the 
States signing the Charter in 1945 could take .any 
action, in relation to ex-enemy States, that they might 
deem necessary and that the ex-enemy States could 
not appeal to the United Nations to prohibit or rev.oke 
such action. The Article in no way forbade the Umted 
Nations to take action with regard to ex-enemy States 
within the framework of the principles of the Charter. 
If the victorious Powers had concluded a treaty of 
peace with Germany and the United Nations had 
intervened to infringe the provisions of that treaty, 
the Chilean delegation would have been the first to 
protest and would have opposed any act~on likel.Y to 
weaken the juridical structure of an mternatwnal 
agreement. However, the_re was no treaty of p~ace 
with Germany and the actwn proposed by the Umted 
Nations, far from constituting interference in the 
domestic affairs of a State, was intended to facilitate 



24th Meeting-17 December 1951 127 

the carrying out of an obligation assumed by the four 
Powers and the implementation of one of the principles 
of the Charter, the right of peoples to self-determination. 

11. It was true that the United Nations had already 
taken similar action to that envisaged in the three­
Power draft resolution. In that connexion Mr. Trucco 
did not think that it would be appropriate to cite the 
case of Italy ; a treaty of peace had been concluded with 
Italy and the question raised was that of recommen­
dations to the signatories of the Treaty requesting 
them to reconsider certain clauses. It was because they 
had not wished to impair the integrity of the Treaty 
that the sponsors of the proposals had withdrawn 
them and the problem had not been taken up by the 
General Assembly. On the other hand, the action taken 
by the United Nations with regard to Greece, the Berlin 
blockade and Korea, proved that, under Article 14 
of the Charter, the United Nations was competent to 
recommend measures for the peaceful adjustment 
of any situation likely to impair the general welfare or 
friendly relations among nations. 

12. The only organs competent to decide the legality 
of the inclusion of an item in the Assembly's agenda 
--the General Committee and the General Assembly 
itself-had already come to a decision and that deci<;ion 
should be final. By refusing to accept it and to give 
the proposed commission of investigation free access 
to the Zone under its control, the USSR would be 
applying the right of veto to the General Assembly 
and would paralyze United Nations work for the 
strengthening of peace and the right of self-deter­
mination. 

13. The USSR representative had alleged that Lhe 
action contemplated by the United Nations would be 
an unwarranted interference in the domestic afiairs of 
a State. Mr. Trucco was convinced that no Member 
State, apart from the Soviet Union and the countries 
of the Eastern bloc, wished to interfere in the domestic 
afiairs of a sovereign State. If the legal representatives 
of the eastern Zone of Germany refused to allow the 
proposed commission of investigation to enter that 
Zone, l he commission would restrict its studies Lo the 
territories where it would be favourably received. It 
could only be said that there had been unwarranted 
interference on the part of the United Nations if the 
Organization tried to impose a commission of inves­
tigation by force and compelled the eastern Zone of 
Germany to allow the commission to enter its territory. 

14. The Chilean delegation was convinced that, as 
in the cases of Korea and Greece, the USSR would try 
to paralyze any United Nations action and prevent the 
peoples concerned from freely expressing their aspi­
rations, but it hoped that the situation would not 
develop as it had in Korea, where refusal to grant the 
necessary support to the Organization had been 
followed by military aggression. 

15. The USSR objected to free and secret elections 
in Germany because such elections would bring about 
the collapse of the domination which it exercised. In 
spite of oppression by an implacable military, and 
police machine, the Communist Party could only 

----------------------------------------
count, on obtaining, at the most, 33 per cent of the 
votes, as the Soviet Union controlled only one-third 
of German territory. The large number of emigrants 
fleeing from communist tyranny showed how the German 
people welcomed the regime imposed on them and 
made clearer the reasons for the USSR Government's 
objection to the efiorts made by the United Nations 
to achieve the political unification of Germany. 

16. The Polish representative had stated (22nd meeting) 
that Mr. Adenauer, Chancellor of the German Federal 
Republic, did not wish to effect the unification of 
Germany. It was no secret, however, that it was as a 
result of a request made by Mr. Adenauer himself 
that the General Assembly had decided to include in 
its agenda the question of setting up an impartial 
commission to study the question of general elections 
in Germany. Similarly, the Polish representative's 
statements that the German Democratic Republic 
alone wished to bring about the unification of Germany 
were contradictory to the position taken by the repre­
sentatives of the USSR and its satellite States, who 
had lost no time in stating that East Germany would 
never allow a United Nations commission, which 
wished to lay the foundations of a unified Germany, 
to visit its territory. Likewise the Polish representative 
had stated that the United Nations was merely a tool 
in the hands of Powers opposed to the unification of 
Germany. 

17. The Polish representative doubtless did not view 
lhe political unification of a country or the right of 
peoples to self-determination in the same light as the 
representatives of free peoples. No one had forgotten 
that the Soviet Union forces, caring little for that 
principle, had entered Poland in 1939 at the very 
moment when that country was fighting desperately 
against German imperialism. It was not surprising 
that the opinion of the representative of a country 
which owed allegiance to the USSR was difierent from 
that held !Jy the representatives of free peoples. 

18. Heferring to the facts whieh the recent discussions 
had brought to light, Mr. Trucco said that the repre­
sentatives of the two Zones had agreed that differences 
existed between the two occupation Zones as regards 
political, economic and social conditions. That was a 
fact which in itself justified the setting up of a United 
Nations commission of investigation to determine to 
what extent those differences would afiect free elections 
in the whole of Germany. Furthermore, the repre­
sentatives of West Germany had expressed the wish 
that free elections should Lake place in Germany 
under the auspices of an impartial commission, while, 
according to the representatives of East Germany, the 
problem should be solved directly by the representatives 
of the German people. 

19. In i\lr. Trucco's opinion, the problem could be 
solved only by the creation of an international com­
mission, as the solution recommended by the repre­
sentatives of East Germany would only prolong the 
problem incldinitcly. It was for that reason that the 
Chilean delrgation eould not support the draft resolution 
submitted by the Swedish delegation, which laid down, 



128 General Session-Ad Hoc Political Committee 

in terms identical with those used by the Soviet dele­
gations, the principle that it was impossible to solve the 
problem. He felt that by voting for that draft resolution 
Member States would acknowledge their impotence 
in the face of the actions of a minority which, not 
content with illegally using its right of veto in the 
Security Council. tried to hamper the work of the 
General Assembly. 

20. Close and friendly ties linkNI the Chilean people 
to the German people, and it was to be hoped that the 
people of that great country would be able to decide 
its own fate frt>ely. It was time that those who governed 
the German Democratic Republic understood that the 
country must not again be the victim of an imperialist 
dictatorship. Germany could still Pscape the fate of 
other eastern European countrit's which were now 
under the yoke of governmeniH controlled by the 
Soviet Union because they had not held frpe elections 
in good time. In the eyes of the rulers of the USSR 
there was no greater crime for a communist Stale than 
to wish to prove its independence. The case of Yugo­
slavia was a typical example. Tlwre was still time for 
Germany to escape Soviet domination. For that reason 
Mr. Trucco believed that the United Nations should 
assist Germany with all the means at its disposal, and 
should not repeat the errors and weaknesses of the 
League of Nations. It should take an acLive part in 
re-establishing democracy in the whole of Germany by 
assisting that country to organize free elections. 

21. Sir Gladwyn .JEBB (United Kingdom) recalled 
the many violent attacks on the policies of the United 
Kingdom. the United Stales and France by the fl'Jll'e­
sentatives of the Soviet bloc. The Federal Hepuhlic 
of Germany had also been subjected to severe criticism. 
The purpose of the attacks had been to prove by 
contrast that the German Democratic Republic pursued 
a blameless and entirely constructive policy. He did 
not propose to spend hours going through those alle­
gations but would merely mention in passing two whieh 
had struck him as among the most fantastic. 

22. Thus, the USSR and Byelorussian rcpresenlalives 
had declared that the United Kingdom and the Cnited 
States, in uniting the economit•s of thpir two Zones of 
occupation in Germany in December 1946, were, in 
faet, dividing Germany. That was indeed paradoxical, 
particularly when it was recalled that the two Western 
Powers had tried to bring about the economic unity of 
Gern1any while the USSR authorities in the eastern 
Zone had persistently tried to isolate their Zone from 
the western Zone. The Western Powers had invited 
the Soviet Union to join them at any time. 

23. The Polish representative, in an attempt to show 
that the Federal Chancellor, Mr. Adenatter, had been 
a nazi, had disinterred a newspaper cutting dated 1929. 
He had, however, forgotten to mention that 
Mr. Adenauer had withdrawn from public life under 
the nazis and, on at least one occasion, had been 
arrested by them. 

24. Sir Gladwyn did not propose to counter such 
questionable allegations. He would confine himself 
to re.j<?cting categorically, on hts <filvemment's behalf, 

the implication that the United Kingdom policy in 
general, and the proposal to set up a commission of 
investigation in particular, were designed to place the 
Federal Government in a state of subservience, to 
perpetuate the division of Germany, to encircle the 
USSR or to pave the way for a third world war. 

25. He wished, however, to deal with a number of 
points more directly related to the question under 
discussion. 

26. The divergent views which the Committee had 
heard on condilions in the two Germanies were the 
strongest possible argument in favour of setting up an 
impartial commission of investigation without delay. 
Direct dispassionate observation was the only way 
of showing which of the two parties was right and which 
was wrong. The Iraqi representative had expressed 
that view, with which he whole-heartedly agreed. 

27. It had been suggested that the problem of German 
elections ought to be settled by discussions bet.wee11 
the Germans themselves. Howewr the population of 
East Germany did not possess an administration which 
represented its wishes or intentions. As the repre­
sentative of Haiti had said (23rd meeting), the Ad Hoc 
Political Committe<> should not be drluded by the fact 
that the administration of East Germanv called itself 
a democratic republic. Such a democ~atie republic 
was in reality nothing less than an unpopular 
dictatorship. 

28. The representatives of East Germany, like LlwHe 
of \Vest Germany, Hsked for free, democratic and 
s.:errt elections. The aims of lhr two parties did not, 
t herd ore, appear to he far apart. But the plain fael 
was that the West Germans believed that the East 
German declarations were valueless since they bore 
little, if any, relation to the conditions actually existing 
in the Soviet Zone. There would therefore he no point 
in the repn•st'ntatives of tlw two sklt•s concerned 
consulting. What was wanted now was an impartial 
assessment of the ftlcts. 

29. It might he argued that the question of elections 
in Germany ought to lw settled by the four occupying 
Powers without bringing in the United Nations. \Vhik 
that would be ideal, it was unfortunately a fact thai the 
pfforts of the three Powers to achieve agreement had 
repeatedly failed. Little progress was likely to be made 
at the moment since the four Powers also disagreed 
on the facts of conditions in Germany. That was why 
a new approach to the problem should be tried by 
invoking the aid of the United Nations. 

30. It was also true that, if created, the commission 
of investigation would probably not be able to carry 
out its task immediately. As the representative of Burma 
had said (23rd meeting), the United Nations could 
exert its influence only by means of moral pressure. 
Moral pressure which simply consisted in referring 
the question back to the four Powers did not seem very 
effective. The United Nations, could, however, express 
its full approval of the idea of a commission in the hope 
that, even if that body found it impossible to carry out 
its work immediatdy, the mor<~l infhienc.e of the 



Organization's decision might later lead tlw USSR 
Government and the East German authorities to 
co-operate with the commission. That was probably 
the reasoning behind the amendment submitted by 
the delegations of Canada, Denmark, Iceland, Nether­
lands and Norway (A/AC.53jL.17), and it was in the 
light of that amendment that the United Kingdom 
delegation was unable to support the main provision 
of the Swedish draft resolution even though it recognized 
the praiseworthy effort made by the Swedish delegation 
to help solve a cDmplicated problem. 

31. Article 107 of the Charter had giwn rise to 
contradictory interpretations and to difTer<>nces of 
opinion which had not yet been settled, but I he summary 
record of the 36lst mt>eting of the S<>eurity Council 
held on 4 October 1948, showed that there was nothing 
in lhe statements made by Mr. Jessup and by 
Sir Alexander Cadogan to suggest that any one of the 
occupying Powers was precluded from making a 
proposal to the United Nations for the use of their good 
offices in eonnexion with Germany which could be 
considered by other Member States. Mr. Jessup and 
Sir Alexander Cadogan had pointed out that the 
question of Article 107 had not even arisen in 1948 
since the Berlin dispute had been one purely between 
the four Powers ; furthermore, none of the occltpying 
Powers could be forced by the United Nations to ad 
in conformity with the Charter with rt>gard to Germany. 
It was particularly elear from the statements made by 
Mr. Jessup that Article 107 did not exelude from llw 
jurisdiction of tlw t:nitcd Nations all matters relating 
to ex-enemy Stat,·s regardless of the circumstance of 
the Powers eoncernPd. If Arliele 107 had hrrn designed 
for that broader purpose, it would have been easy so 
I o provide in mwquivocal languagl' as had been done 
in Article 2, paragraph 7, of the Charter. 

:32. Sir Alexander Cadogan had also stated that it 
was inadmissible to claim that Article 107 debarred 
the Security Council from examining or discu~sing any 
action taken or authorized by the governments respon­
sible for such action in relation to an ex-enemy State. 

33. The sponsors of the three-Pmwr draft rt'solulion 
were not seeking any judgement against lhe USSH 
on the grounds that it had violated the Cniled Nations 
Charter by its actions in Germany. All thatlhe sponsors 
of that draft claimed was that the right of the United 
Nations to consider their proposal should be clearly 
established. In the light of the statements made by 
Mr. Jessup and Sir Alexander Cadogan, as well as of 
the facts to which he himself had referred, it seemed 
incredible that the SDviet bloc should attempt to prove 
that Article 107 of the Charter would be in any way 
violated by the adoption of the three-Power draft 
resolution. 

3,1. It had also been argued. that the selling up of 
the proposed commission would violate Article 2, 
paragraph 7, of the Charter, which precluded thl' 
United Nations from intervening in matters essentially 
within the domestic jurisdiction of States. However, 
as the Colombian representative had rightly pointed 
out (21st meeting), the three-PoweT draft resolution 

December 1951 129 

did not in any way suggest that a United Nations 
commission should try to force its way into Germany, 
still less to overthrow the existing administration there. 
It simply asked the authorities of the Federal Republic, 
of Berlin and of the Soviet Zone, to grant facilities for 
the proposed commission to circulate freely in all those 
territories. 

:>iJ. The Crovermnent of the Federal Hepublie and the 
authorities of the three '"estern sectors of Berlin, 
representing t\vo-thirds of the German people, had 
requested a commission of investigation and were eager 
to grant it full facilities. If, as the authorities of East 
Germany said, they desired free elections to be organized 
throughout Germany, they wonlcl wrlcome a similar 
opportunity. Moreover, if conditions in Easl Germany 
and in the eastern sector of Berlin were as the authorities 
of that region had described them, it was to their 
advantage to 1wrmit a commission to assure itself of 
thal statt' of affairs. 

3t). Nevertlwless, Sir Gladwyn did uo!. wish to indulge 
in recrimination. The United Kingdom Government 
would do everything in its power to reach a practical 
settlement of the German problem. It was for that 
reason that it had request,·d that the issm· :;hould be 
included in the Assembly's agenda. 

37. Although lw personally believed lhal llh' original 
draft resolution submitted by France, the United 
Kingdom and the United States (A/AC.5::3jL.11) had 
been clear, the three delegations would be happy in 
principle to support both the amendment submitted by 
Canada, Denmark, Ieelaml, N<•Lhcrlands and Norway 
(A/AC.53jL.17) and lhat submitted hy Bolivia, Brazil. 
Colombia, Cnba and Vruguay (A/AC.53fL.18). The 
amendments to the lalttT part of the original draft 
resolution wisely stated that Lhe commission's 
conclusions could com prise recommendations relating 
to the new measures which it might prove necessary 
to take in order to establish in Germany the conditions 
necessary for the organization of free elections. Thty 
also provided that the commission would report to the 
Secretary-General on the results of its efforts ancl thal, 
if it were not able lo make the necessary arrangements 
immediately in l he Zones conc,·rned, it could make 
another attempt lo carry out ils task when the German 
authorities of the Federal Republic., of Bulin and of 
Llie Soviet Zone, gave it the assurance that they would 
grant permission for it to enter their territory. If the 
situation had not changed by the time of the next 
General Assembly they would no doubt have to think 
again. Finally, the new paragraph 5, incorporating 
the Swedish proposal, indicated that the United Nations 
would offer its help in guaranteeing Lhe freedom of 
elections when Lhe lime came. 

38. The Polish representative had asked why the 
Government of the Federal Republic, which in 1950 
had been prepared to accept control of elections by 
either the four Powers or by an international body, 
was not now prepared to accept a four-Power com­
mission of investigation. In the first place, an impartial 
CDmmission was quite different from a four-Power 
commission. Furthermore, the bitter experiences of' 



130 General Session Ad Hoc Political Committee 

the Federal Republic had no doubt made it feel that 
United Nations supervision was essential in order to 
ensure that the elections should he truly free. 

:39. Sir Gladwyn recalled that }1r. Selwyn Lloyd, the 
United Kingdom representative, had told the Committee 
(15th meeting) that, if the commission of inYestigation 
were lo be refused entry into the Soviet Zone, there 
would appear to be no advantage in its proceeding 
to its investigation in the territory of tlw Federal 
Hcpublic and in the western sector of Berlin. It had 
been with that in mind that paragraph 2 of the operative 
part of the three-Power draft resolution provided that 
the commission should carry out a :;imultaneous 
investigation in the Federal Republic of Germany, in 
Berlin and in the Soviet Zone of Germany. A partial 
inquiry could not in fact achieve any practical result 
since it would not make it possible to determine the 
conditions existing throughout the whole of Germany. 
The Government of the Federal Republic and the 
authorities of the western sector of Berlin were eager 
to facilitate the work of the commission of investigation. 
It was to be hoped that the authorities of East Germany 
would do likewit>e. 

'10. It was not certain l hat the proposed commission 
would be able to function immediately. but nevertheless 
it was important to pay particular attention to the 
sdection of its members. In agreement with the 
delegations of the United States and France, the 
United Kingdom delegation proposed that the com­
mission should he made up of representatives of Brazil, 
Iceland, NethC'rlands, Pakistan and Poland. In spite 
of the negative attitudt> shown in Lhc Committee by 
the Polish representative, Sir Gladwyn hoped that 
Poland would agree to serve on the proposed commission 
of investigation. 

"H. Finally, the United Kingdom representative assured 
the Committee that the three Powers had not sub­
mitted their draft resolution for propaganda purposes. 
NPither was th'• proposal a man~uvre in the " cold 
war ". The truth was that the tlm:e Western 
Powers found themselves, like the Soviet Union. in 
an uncomfortable dilemna. Both sides wanted Germany 
to he united, free, peaceful and democratic ; both 
agreed that Lhat aim could be achieved only hy tn~ly 
free elections. Yet neither side was prepared to agree 
lo the methods suggested by the other. It wou.ld be 
desirable for both to agree at least on the principles of 
an investigation by an impartial body. Sir Gladwyn 
still hoped that the countries of the Soviet bloc would 
not boycott the proposal of the three Powers and that 
they would thus make it possible for the question to 
he settled. 

12. Mr. TAKIEDDINE (Lebanon) recalled that, in 
his statement at the 15th meeting, the United Kingdom 
representative had appealed to the Committee to 
consider the question before it dispassionately and not 
to embark on a discussion of the future of Germany 
which would give rise lo further controversy. The 
Lebanese delegation supported that appeal for prudence. 
The German problem was particularly <iclicatc and 
should he approached most cautiously. 

43. The three-Power draft resolution was praise­
worthy, but if its implementation meant that 
international tension would increase, then it had 
hettrr be abandoned. Again, it was fallacious to 
chrrish too many illusions about the proposed com­
mission's chances of success. The statements by the 
USSR representative and by the representatives of the 
eastt>rn Zone of Germany already showed that the 
authorities in that Zone would consider the establish­
ment of the commission as interference in the internal 
afTairs of Germany and as a violation of the Potsdam 
Agreement and of the United Nations Charter. 

44. Without going into the legal aspect of the question, 
which had already been taken up by several repre­
sentatives, the Lebanese delegation could not fail to 
note that Lhe concept of sovereignty had for some years 
been undergoing a peculiar kind of evolution. The very 
fact that a State subscribed to the United Nations 
Charter and accepted the commitments implicit in it 
seemed to involve the renunciations of part of its 
sovereignty. But there was reason to believe that the 
statements by certain representatives, who had declared, 
on several occasions, that the action contemplated by 
the United Nations represented interference in the 
internal affairs of Germany and a violation of the 
Potsdam Agreement, simply meant Lhat the authorities 
of East Germany did not inh'nd to facilitate the work 
of the commission. 

45. In the cireumstances, il seenH·d that the time had 
come to say that the organizing of general elections 
throughout Germany and the future of Germany 
depended primarily on Germany itself and the four 
occupying Powers. \Vonld it not be advisable to address 
a solt'mn appeal to those Powers to make mutual 
concessions, ·without which no co-operation was 
possible '? Should not the German people also be 
reminded that the unification of Germany could not be 
accomplished against its will and that it alone would 
sufTer the consequences of the failure of efforts in that 
direction ? 

16. The only point on which there seemed to have 
been unanimity was on the need for unification. It was 
high time to bring to an end the isolation of a people 
of 70 millions, who, in the course of the centuries, had 
made a magnificent contribution to knowledge and 
civilization. The measures contemplated by the General 
Assembly would allow that peopl•.' to re-establish 
contact with the free world through the l •1ited Nations. 
Whatever doubts might be felt about the success of 
such measures, they could not be dismissed a priori 
if they contributed towards strengthening peace in 
Europe, towards the conclusion of a peace treaty with 
Germany and towards re-establishing the German 
people in the community of free nations. 

n. However, some aspects of the measures must be 
carefully weighed. First, the proposed commission 
must be composed of members whose impartiality 
could not be doubted by any of the parties concerned. 
It must not therefore include any representative of the 
occupying Pov.:ers. Secondly, the commission should 
be nothing but an investigating body, which would 



refrain from interfering in Germany's domeslie affairs. 
Thirdly, a time-limit should be fixed for the commission 
to report on the results of its investigation-a point 
which had been omitterl in the three-Power draft 
resolution ; the time-limit should not exceed eight 
months so that the commission's report could he 
submitted to the General Assembly's seventh session. 
Finally, the Secretary-General should selec.L with 
partieular can· the sl:1ff to lw sN~ortd(•d lo tlw eom­
missinn. 

·18. The Lebanese tlelegalion would submit an amend­
ment lo the three-Power draft resolution which >vould 
include those various suggestions. 

49. Mr. SEVILLA SACASA (.~icaragua) recalled that 
the subject had been included in the agenda at the 
request of the Federal Republic of Germany, whose 
Government had publicly announced that the main 
objective of its policy continued to be the re-establish­
nwnt of German unity in a free and united Europe, 
and that that unity should be the result of a decision 
freely taken by the German people. He added that the 
Western Powers had stressed the need for effecting 
unity by free elections, with universal suffrage and a 
direct and secret ballot, for the establishment of a 
constituent assemhlv which would lav the foundations 
for the unification· of Germany-an· objective which 
was the just ambition not only of the German people 
hut also of all free men throughout the world. 

50. Those who desired to see that aspiration realized 
would welcome the day when it would be possible to 
receive as a member of the universal community of 
nations, a Germany genuinely democratic, industrious, 
freed from the terror imposed by the hitlerite dicta­
torship and devoted to peaceful and constructive tasks. 

51. The time had come for the United ~ations to 
strive to remove the obstacles in the way of unification 
by acting, in the spirit of the Charter, as a friendly 
arbitrator and propose formulae which would render 
it possible to consult the opinion of the German people, 
freely expressed, in accordance with the principle of 
self-determination of peoples. 

52. The question whether the United Xatious was or 
was not competent to take up the matter had been 
debated at length. The Nicaraguan delegation agreed 
with the point of view maintained by a number of 
representatives, and supported by eminent authorities 
in the field, concerning the legal scope of Article 107 
of the Charter, which it considered permissive and not 
mandatory. It further considered that the provisions 
of that Article were in no way at variance with tlw 
action suggested in the three-Power draft resolution. 

Printed in Fran<:e 

131 

53. Nor ermld that aetion he allegr!l to viola1e Article 'L. 
paragraph 7, of the Charter or to constitute interference 
in the domestic affairs of Germany. Nicaragua was an 
ardent champion of the principle of non-intervention, 
which it regarded as one of the strongest foundations 
of any international structure. It had maintained that 
view "at all the inter-American and international confer­
ences in whieh il had participated. It was, howt>ver, 
eonvineed that the uppoinlnwnt of a United Nation" 
(:onunission would nol infringt• !haL prineiple, sinet·, 
although ArLide 2 sLated LhaL nothing eontaiued in the 
Charter should authorize the United Nations to interwne 
in matters which were essentially within the domestie 
jurisdiction of any State, the de facio position of Germany 
since the war could not be said to give it the rank of a 
sovereign State. United Nalions intervention would 
have the purpose of assisting in the re-establishment 
of a unified and sovereign German State, and its 
intervention had indeed been requested by 46 million 
people inhabiting three-quarters of the territory or 
Germany. 

54. The Colombian and other representatives had 
feared that the proposed commission might be refused 
access to the eastern Zone of Germany and that a 
situation similar to that in Korea in 1948 might develop. 
The Nicaraguan delegation did not entertain those 
fears. It was convinced that a division existed and 
was profound, a faet made quite plain by the spokesmen 
of the two Zones of Germany. Nevertheless it believed 
that even if the proposed commission were refused 
access to the eastern Zone of Germany, its work in the 
western Zone would be no less useful, since it woulrl 
show whether the assertions of the representatives of 
\Vest Germany were eorrect. Such a survey, and an 
unjustifiable refusal of admittance by the eastern Zone, 
would enable the whole world to form an idea of the 
mysterious situation beyond the " iron curtain ". 

55. All Germans, the free on the one side and the 
oppressed on the other, \vanted Germany to he united. 
The United Nations could not refuse them the en­
couragement which the establishment of the proposed 
commission would offer, or confirmation of its belief 
that a united Germany could contribute to the progress 
of civilization. Much was to be hoped from the German 
people, once it had devoted itself to constructive tasks 
and banished militarism. 

56. The Niearaguan delegation would therefore vote 
for the three-Power draft resolution as amended by the 
delegations of Bolivia, Brazil, Colombia, Cuba and 
Uruguay (A/AC.53/L.18). 

The meeting rose at 1.35 p.m. 

n--93580-.January 1952--3,600 




